
 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday 

April 15, 2021 

5:00 p.m. 

In accordance with the California Governor’s Executive Stay at Home Order and the County of Ventura Health 

Officer Declared Local Health Emergency and Be Well at Home Order resulting from the novel coronavirus 

(COVID-19), the Fillmore City Hall is closed to the public. Therefore, the FPB GSA will be holding its Regular 

Board of Directors meeting virtually using the ZOOM video conferencing application. 

If you are new to ZOOM video conferencing, please visit this help page in advance of the meeting date and time: 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-How-Do-I-Join-A-Meeting- 
To participate in the Board of Directors meeting via Zoom, please access: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82477092074?pwd=SkJoa2hhZk5pUG1wZzJLa3V5dGZsQT09 

                                                Meeting ID: 824 7709 2074                 Password: FPBGSA 
 

To hear just the audio portion of the meeting, phone into the toll-free number 877 853 5247 
Meeting ID: 824 7709 2074 

All participants are asked to join the meeting at least five minutes in advance of the 5pm start time 
and be aware that all participants will be “muted” until recognized by the host. If your computer 

has a camera, please enable it so we can ensure better engagement between participants. 
If you would like to address the Board with a question or offer a comment, please follow these simple instructions 

to engage the host (Clerk of the Board): 
1. During a meeting, click on the icon labeled "Participants" at the bottom center of your computer screen. 
2. At the bottom of the window on the right side of the screen, click the button labeled "Raise Hand." 
3. Once you’ve been recognized by the Chair, please click on “Raise Hand” again to remove the signal. 

Similarly, if you have a comment or question for the Board, you can use the “Chat” button to convey your question 
or comment to the HOST, who will put you in line to address the Board. 
 

The Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA Board of Directors appreciates your participation and 

patience in using Zoom to conduct its public meeting. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 1A Pledge of Allegiance 

1B Directors Roll Cal

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-How-Do-I-Join-A-Meeting-
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82477092074?pwd=SkJoa2hhZk5pUG1wZzJLa3V5dGZsQT09


Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting -  

April 15, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 
1C Public Comments 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Agency) will accept public comment 
concerning agenda items at the time the item is considered and on any non-agenda item within the 
jurisdiction of the Board during the agendized Public Comment period. No action will be taken by the 
Board on any non-agenda item. In accordance with Government Code § 54954.3(b)(1), public comment 
will be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker per issue. 

 
1D Approval of Agenda 

Motion 
 

2. UPDATES 

 

2A Director Announcements/Board Communications: 
Oral Reports from the Board 

 
Fillmore Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update  

 

Piru Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update  

 

Environmental Stakeholder Director Update 

 

City of Fillmore Member Director Update 

 

United Water Conservation District Member Director Update 

 

County of Ventura Member Director Update 

 

2B Executive Director Update 

Information Item 
The Executive Director will provide an informational update on Agency activities since the 
previous Board meeting of March 18, 2021. 

 
 2C Legal Counsel Update 

Information Item 
Legal Counsel will provide an informational update on Agency’s legal issues and concerns since the 
previous Board meeting of March 18, 2021. 

 
2D GSP Consultant Update 

Information Item 

Representatives from Daniel B Stephens & Associates and UWCD will provide an 
informational update on Agency’s GSP development activities since the previous Board 
meeting of March 18, 2021. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting -  

April 15, 2021 

Page 3 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Board and will be enacted by one
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member pulls an item from the
Calendar. Pulled items will be discussed and acted on separately by the Board. Members of the public who want
to comment on a Consent Calendar item should do so under Public Comments. (ROLL CALL VOTE
REQUIRED)

3A Approval of Minutes 

The Board will consider approving the Minutes from the Board Meetings of March 18, 2021 
and April 1, 2021. 

3B Approval of Warrants 
The Board will consider approving payment of outstanding vendor invoices 

         United Water Conservation District                               $28,058.48 

3C Monthly Financial Report 
The Board will receive the Agency’s monthly profit and loss statement and balance sheet. 

4. MOTION ITEMS

4A Resolution 2021-01 Waiver of Late Fees and Interest on Groundwater 

Charges 

Motion 
The Board will consider adopting Resolution Number 2021-01 amending the Agency 
Bylaws to authorize the Executive Director to approve waiver of certain late fees and interest 
charges associated with groundwater pumping fees. 

4B California Department of Fish and Wildlife Request for Waiver of Late 

Fees and Interest 

Motion 
The Board will consider California Department of Fish and Wildlife’s request for waiver of 
late fees and interest in the amount of $1,687.99 for groundwater pumping associated with 
its Fillmore Fish Hatchery facility.  

4C Four Oaks Ranch Request for Waiver of Late Fees and Interest 

Motion 
The Board will consider a request by the Four Oaks Ranch for waiver of late fees and 
interest in the amount of $86.38 for groundwater pumping associated with the Four Oaks 
Ranch.  



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency Board of Directors Meeting 

April 15, 2021 

Page 4 

4D City of Fillmore Request for Waiver of Late Fees and Interest 

Motion 
The Board will consider a request by the City of Fillmore for waiver of late fees and interest 
in the amount of $1,163,80 for groundwater pumping associated with its municipal water 
supply wells.  

4E Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP Audit Amendment Number 1 

Motion 
The Board will consider approving Amendment Number 1 to Agreement 2019-08-21 with 
Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP for financial auditing services for the Fiscal Years 
2019-2020 and 2020-2021 for up to $9,200. 

4F Sustainable Management Criteria Development 

Motion 
The Board will consider stakeholder input regarding the Agency’s Sustainable Management 
Criteria matrix with a focus on finalizing the Land Subsidence criteria and the Streamflow 
criteria and provide direction to Agency staff and consultant team toward development of 
the draft Groundwater Sustainability Plans. 

4G Special Board Meeting on Sustainable Management Criteria 
Motion 
The Board will select a date for a Special Board Meeting in April 2021 to consider approval 
of the Sustainable Management Criteria matrix. 

FUTURE TOPICS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, May 20, 2021 or call of 
the Chair 

Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are provided to the Board of Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, 
including any documents provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, are available for inspection at UWCD’s offices at 1701 N. Lombard 
Street in Oxnard during normal business hours. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 
benefits of, the District’s services, programs or activities because of any disability. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or 
if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, please contact the UWCD Office at (805) 525-4431 or the City of Fillmore at (805) 524- 
1500. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make appropriate arrangements.     

Approved:   
Board Chair Kelly Long 

(time) 6:00pm (attest) Eva Ibarra Posted: (date) April 09, 2021
At: https://www.FPBGSA.org 

https://www.fpbgsa.org/


Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting -  

April 15, 2021 

Page 5 
(time) 6:30pm (attest) Eva Ibarra Posted: (date) April 09, 2021

At: https://www.facebook.com/FPBGSA/ 

(attest) Eva Ibarra Posted: (date) April 09, 2021                                (time) 6:45pm
At: UWCD, 1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard CA 93030 

https://www.facebook.com/FPBGSA/


 
Board of Directors Meeting/Stakeholder Workshop 

March 18, 2021 
Via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Directors Present 
Director Kelly Long, Chair  
Director Ed McFadden, Vice Chair/Secretary 
Director Gordon Kimball 
Director Candice Meneghin  
Director Glen Pace 
Director Christina Villaseñor 
 
Staff Present 
Anthony Emmert, Executive Director 
Steve O’Neill, Legal Counsel 
Eva Ibarra, Clerk of the Board 
 
Public Present 
Lisa Ballin, CSUS/DBS&A 
Bryan Bondy, Fillmore and Piru Pumpers Associations 
Christian Brodrick, Stillwater Science 
Katie Brokaw 
Dan Detmer, UWCD 
Michael Fetchner 
Carole Fornoff 
Matt Freeman 
Burt Handy 
Debbie Jackson 
Rachel Laenen  
Murray McEachron, UWCD 
Helen McGrath 
Tony Morgan, DBS&A 
Patrick O’Connell, DBS&A 
Bruce Orr, Stillwater Science 
Eddie Pech, DWR 
Zachary Plummer, UWCD 
Lara Shellenbanger 
Stacie Ann Silva 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 2 

 

Steve Slack, CDFW 
Lita Spencer 
Dr. Jason Sun, UWCD 
Richard Tate 
Jean Thirkettle 
Roy Thun 
James Thurber 
Ambry Tibay, UWCD 
Jim Van de Water 
Gilead Wurman 
Steven Zimmer 
 

1. Call to Order – First Open Session 5:00 pm 
Chair Long, called the meeting to order at 5 pm. 

1A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Director Kimball led the meeting participants in the reciting of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

1B.  Directors Roll Call 
Roll call: (Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, 
Villaseñor); six present.  
 

1C.  Public Comments 
Chair Long asked if there were any public comments; none were offered. 

           1D.   Approval of Agenda 
Motion 
Motion to approve the agenda, Vice Chair McFadden; Second, Director 
Villaseñor. Roll call vote: six ayes (Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair 
McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, Villaseñor); none opposed. Motion carries 6/0. 
 

2. UPDATES 

           2A          Director Announcements/Board Communications: 

                 Oral Reports from the Board 
 

Fillmore Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update 

Director Kimball reported the Fillmore Pumpers 

Association’s Board had a combined Fillmore and Piru 

Pumpers Associations meeting on March 9, during which 

time the members discussed, reviewed, and approved the 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 3 

 

letter to the GSA on the subsidence SMC and discussed the 

added cost of the two GPS monitors mentioned in the letter, 

with general widespread support for the cost of the monitors. 

Additionally, he said the members also discussed 

groundwater storage, groundwater elevation SMCs and he 

received general support for the groundwater elevation SMC, 

as proposed, as well as support for matching elevations for 

the groundwater storage SMC.  He stated that there was 

concern expressed for the progress of the monitoring wells 

project.  He reported that members are willing to help in any 

way possible, as they are aware that this is a difficult and time 

consuming process and are also concerned that Department 

of Water Resources will not grant an extension on the grant 

terms if deadlines are not met. 

 

Piru Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update 

Director Pace echoed the same sentiments expressed by 

Director Kimball and simply stated the concern is time, 

adding “it is not on our side.” 

 

Environmental Stakeholder Director Update 

Director Meneghin stated she had no update and would 

be commenting further on other agenda items during 

the meeting regarding SMCs and GDEs.  

 

                          City of Fillmore Member Director Update 

Director Villaseñor reported that she summarized the SMC at the last 

City Council meeting and mentioned the City of Fillmore continues to 

waive the water non-payment penalties and water shut off orders for its 

customers during the COVID-19 period. The City has extended the 

deadline for another 120 days or until the Governor officially ends the 

emergency declaration. She also mentioned community members 

stepped up and promoted vaccination, and Fillmore now has its own 

vaccination clinic. 

 

                          United Water Conservation District Member Director Update 

       Vice Chair McFadden stated he had nothing to report. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 4 

 

                          County of Ventura Member Director Update 

Chair Long reported she has forwarded the GDE Technical 

Memo for County staff review. She also mentioned that County is 

now in the red tier at the COVID-19 one year anniversary. 

 

2B Executive Director Update 

           Information Item 

        Executive Director Anthony Emmert provided an update stating 

open groundwater invoices are down from $57,000 in November 

2020 overall, but one customer with two wells represents almost 

$23,000 of the receivables total.  He stated that the pumper is being 

sued by United for non-payment. He reported that staff timely 

submitted progress report seven and invoice to the Department of 

Water Resources. DWR requested edits to progress report seven 

and staff are currently making edits and will return the report to 

DWR this week. Mr. Emmert mentioned the United staff are 

proceeding with documentation for the expanded Regional 

Groundwater Model, with a target date of the end of April 2021.  

He also mentioned a few future agenda items to be added for next 

month’s agenda. 

 
 2C  Legal Counsel Update 

           Information Item 

Legal Counsel Steve O’Neill provided an update stating he has been 

working with staff on the monitoring wells project, providing some well 

drilling contract templates and easement agreements for the well sites.  

He said that his firm received a favorable court decision in recent 

groundwater litigation judication. He stated that this documentation 

will help in providing guidance on decision making regarding 

customers who are delinquent in their payments to Fillmore Piru Basin 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 
 
 

2D   GSP Consultant Update 

           Information Item 

Mr. Tony Morgan from Daniel B Stephens & Associates provided 

an informational update regarding the Groundwater Dependent 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 5 

 

Ecosystems (GDE) Technical Memo that was posted on the 

website for stakeholder review and comment.  Consultants have 

been working on many aspects of the GSPs, analyzing and 

reanalyzing information as they develop the SMC matrix for 

presentation to the Board.  He stated there is no update on the 

Monitoring Wells Project, as they wanted to focus more on the 

SMCs, but will provide an update at the next meeting. 

 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Board and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board 
member pulls an item from the Calendar. Pulled items will be discussed and acted on separately 
by the Board. Members of the public who want to comment on a Consent Calendar item should 
do so under Public Comments.  

3A  Approval of Minutes 

The Board considered and approved the Minutes from the Board 

Meeting of February 18, 2021. 

3B  Approval of Warrants  

     The Board approved payment of outstanding vendor invoices. 

                Daniel B. Stephens & Associates       $119,477.76                          

                Ventura County IT Services                     $686.50                                          

                Olivarez Madruga Lemeiux O’Neill      $1,983.50                 

 

3C  Monthly Financial Report 

       The Board received the Agency’s monthly profit and loss statement 

and balance sheet. 

Motion to approve Consent Calendar items, Director Villaseñor; Second, Vice Chair 

McFadden. Roll call vote: six ayes (Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair McFadden, 

Meneghin, Pace, Villaseñor); none opposed.  Motion carries 6/0. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 6 

 

4.   STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP  
 

4A  Presentation on Groundwater Ecosystem 
   Informational 

The Board received a presentation from Christian Braudrick, PhD, 

Fluvial Geomorphologist, with Stillwater Sciences, on the Groundwater 

Dependent Ecosystems Technical Memorandum (see attached slides). 

Director Meneghin asked about impacts to the Sespe Cienega, 

specifically if any conclusions or assumptions were being made around 

conservation releases, drought, or pumping, as there were conservation 

releases from Santa Felicia Dam within the years mentioned. Dr. 

Brodrick explained his theory behind what he presented.  

Vice Chair McFadden asked a related question and pointed out the 

map presented on the normalized difference vegetation index (NDVI) 

for the Sespe Cienega. Dr. Brodrick explained his theory as presented 

and Bruce Orr from Stillwater Science also joined the discussion 

providing his input on the subject. 

Chair Long asked if Arundo donax is an invasive plant and why are the 

consultants giving it any credit in the NDVI analysis.  She stated that 

many organizations are paying to remove it. Dr. Brodrick replied that 

the plant is not given credit, it is just there, and they are ongoing efforts 

to control the Arundo. 

Director Meneghin asked Dr. Orr about the regeneration of                      

Arundo after the drought. Dr. Orr explained his observations on the 

subject. 

 

      4B       Presentation on Draft Sustainable Management Criteria Matrix  

    Informational 

                  The Board received a presentation from Mr. Tony Morgan of Daniel 

B. Stephens & Associates on the SMC matrix (see attached slides). 
 

         Director Meneghin stated that by following the SMC table, the GSA is 

going to be impacting Groundwater Depended Ecosystems on the 

Sespe Cienega during future drought conditions and made suggestions 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 7 

 

for what she felt would help meet the SMC goals listed, along with 

other questions on what was presented. Mr. Morgan explained his 

reasoning on the information used in his presentation.  

         Vice Chair McFadden asked both Mr. Morgan and Director 

Meneghin about the Fish Hatchery plans. Mr. Morgan stated he did 

not have any information and Director Meneghin stated she has only 

heard rumors of them not being operational in the future and 

mentioned other restoration is planned within that general site. Vice 

Chair McFadden asked if the GSA was relying on the water outflows 

from the Fish Hatchery operations to support the Sespe Cienega. 

Director Meneghin stated that the restoration area is going to be 

regraded and replanted and recommended that the GSA review the 

restoration plan at future Board meeting. Chair Long stated she had 

heard that the restoration area will be regraded but will not have a 

higher water demand. 

4C.   Stakeholder Input and Discussions on Draft Sustainable Management 

Criteria Matrix 

 Informational 

 The Board and consultant team received stakeholder input on the 

draft Sustainable Management Criteria matrix. 

4D             Summarize Workshop Stakeholder Input 

Mr. Bryan Bondy stated that Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems tend to 

occur in the context of surface water flow and recommended focus on the 

specific criteria for surface water depletion. 

Director Kimball mentioned it is clear from the stress test model runs that 

these basins fill rapidly and effectively, and it would be the Pumpers’ 

recommendation to have the groundwater storage reduction minimum 

threshold match the minimum thresholds or groundwater elevation and 

provided a brief explanation of the Pumpers’ discussion. 

          Director Pace added the pumpers are assuming that the model shows that it 

does refill, and as long it does refill, that is what makes more sense to the 

Pumpers. 

 Mr. Bondy summarized the comment letter provided by the Pumpers. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 8 

 

 Participant chat question, “if land subsidence is not an issue, is it necessary  

to use the continuous Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) monitoring 

system? 

  Mr. Bondy answered on chat, stating the benefit of the GPS monitoring is to 

make sure the GSA can properly interpret the satellite data should there be 

land movement and prevent an incorrect conclusion that land movement 

caused by tectonics is due to groundwater pumping.  

Vice Chair McFadden asked if the Pumpers are suggesting we change the 

Minimum Thresholds and Measurable Objectives to what Mr. Bondy is 

suggesting. Director Pace replied yes, that is what the pumpers think are 

reasonable numbers to be taken into consideration. Vice Chair McFadden 

said he agreed on the recommendations. 

 Mr. Bondy mentioned that Tony Morgan has proposed one foot per year, 

and the GSA should consider the basis that Mr. Morgan has for the one foot 

per year. Mr. Morgan explained why he made that choice. 

 Director Kimball stated in the next five years, the GSA needs to consider 

having a study done to identify what is the critical infrastructure that might be 

affected by subsidence, as it needs to know where they are and what sensitivity 

they have. 

 Participant chat question, “is it likely that the overall footprint of Groundwater 

Dependent Ecosystems (GDE's) is currently larger due to more water in the 

basins because of new water introduced into Ventura County from LA 

County Sanitation District annually over the last 50 years?”  

 Dr. Brodrick replied by sharing his screen and providing an explanation 

supported by a previous slide and invited Dr. Orr to provide his input. 

Chair Long asked Dr. Orr various questions and Dr. Orr provided 

responses for her clarification. 

Board members had an extensive discussion on different aspects of the 

information provided by Stillwater, and Dr. Orr provided answers to all 

their questions and concerns. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 9 

 

Participant chat statement, “I would like to continue to encourage the board 

to always be as aggressive as possible when finalizing these Sustainable 

Management Criteria’s SMCs, we have very resilient basins, and it would be 

prudent to make sure we do not artificially limit ourselves.” 

Participant chat statement, “I agree with previous statement, everything 

presented here indicates we have very resilient basins and there is no need to 

set unnecessary limits.” 

Vice Chair McFadden asked Dr. Brodrick about the table of groundwater 

dependent species. He wanted to make sure which plants were mentioned in 

the report.  Dr. Brodrick stated the species mentioned in the report are 

named in the table.  Dr. Orr joined the discussion and provided more clarity 

on the question asked. 

Director Meneghin requested Dr. Brodrick share the GDEs that he is 

referencing. Dr. Brodrick did not reply. 

Director Pace mentioned there are still a lot of conversations to be had to 

determine what is significant and unreasonable, to help make a decision as 

to what is critical and how the GSA stays within its guidelines. 

Director Kimball echoed the same and thanked Dr. Brodrick on the report 

and stated the GSA needs input from environmental stakeholders. 

Director Meneghin stated the delay in the release of the GDE Technical 

Memo made it impossible to provide any input from the environmental 

organizations at this time, but would encourage the submittal of comment 

letters. 

Participant chat comment, “I also agree with Rachel's comment regarding 

our resilient basins even to the extent that I am almost ready to reverse my 

support of continual GPS monitoring of Subsidence for the Piru Basin and 

that maybe it should be declared as ‘Not Applicable’ because much of the 

Piru Basin soil profile where many of our wells are located is mostly 

comprised of sand, gravel, rock and very little clay, therefore, we need to be 

very careful to set minimum thresholds and measurable objectives for 

Subsidence that may or may not be necessary given a very stable basin that is 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 10 

 

not very expansive, I understand the potential that any subsidence truly be 

attributed to plate tectonics and not subsidence.” 

Motion to receive and file, Meneghin; Second, Pace. Roll call vote: six ayes 
(Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, Villaseñor); none 
opposed. Motion carries 6/0. 
 

5.  MOTION ITEMS 

5A  Sustainable Management Criteria Development 

  Motion 

The Board did not approve the Sustainable Management Criteria 

matrix for use in developing the draft Groundwater Sustainability 

Plans. 

   No action taken by the Board at this time. 
 

5B Special Board Meeting on Sustainable Management Criteria 
Motion 

 The Board selected April 1st as the date for the Special Board Meeting 

of a Sustainable Management Criteria matrix, should the matrix not be 

approved during the current Board meeting. 

Motion to approve April 1, as the date for a Special Board meeting on SMC 
matrix, Director Meneghin; Second, Director Kimball. Roll call vote; six ayes 
(Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, Villaseñor); 
none opposed.  Motion carries 6/0. 

 

     FUTURE TOPICS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

        None mentioned. 

        ADJOURNMENT:  8:45 pm 

Chair Long adjourned the meeting at 8:23 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting 

on Thursday, April 15, 2021 or call of the Chair. 

 
 ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 
  Kelly Long, Chair, FPB GSA Board of Directors 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

March 18, 2021 

Page 11 

 

I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Fillmore and 

Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Board of Directors meeting of 

March 18, 2021. 

 
ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 
  Eva Ibarra, Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

1

Fil lmore and Piru 
Basins

Groundwater 
Dependent Ecosystems

Christian Braudrick and Bruce Orr 

Stillwater Sciences

Photo: Bruce Orr

Outline

• What are GDEs

• Approach
• GDE Units and their composition

• GDE trends through time

• Groundwater‐dependent special status 
species

Photo: Bruce Orr



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

2

Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems (GDEs)

DWR defines GDEs as ecological 
communities or species that 
depend on groundwater emerging 
from aquifers or on groundwater 
occurring near the ground surface.

Braudrick et al., 2018 (figure by K. Rodriguez)

GDEs occur in a variety of different environments ranging from 
seeps and springs, to groundwater‐dependent wetlands, to 
aquatic and riparian ecosystems associated with rivers that 
partially or entirely rely on groundwater.

Our Goal is to define the extent and composition of 
groundwater dependent ecosystems to provide the basis for 
assessing 

GDE
GDE

Part 1. GDE Mapping

Braudrick et al., 2018 (figure by K. Rodriguez and A. Merrill)

1. What plant communities occur in the 
Fillmore and Piru Basins?

2. Are the plant species likely to be connected 
to groundwater ?
• How deep are their roots?
• How deep is the groundwater?

3. What is the extent of interconnected 
surface water? GDE

GDE

Photo: Bruce Orr



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

3

The Fillmore and Piru Basins have had 3 historical 
forested wetlands that correspond to areas of 
rising groundwater

Photo: Bruce Orr

Approach



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

4

• High quality data 
(Stillwater Sciences 
2016) along the 
Santa Clara River, 
data quality is 
lower (CalVeg‐
2002) on the 
margins of the 
basin

Source Data

• We identified 8 
GDE units.

• 3 have certain 
connections to 
groundwater

• 2 may be 
connected some of 
the time

• And 3 have little 
data

GDE Units



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

5

Del Valle Riparian Complex

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Common and
giant reed
marshes

Freemont
cottonwood
woodland
and forest

Mulefat
thickets

Red willow
riparian
woodland
and forest

Tamarisk
thickets

A
cr
es

Vegetation Community

• Historical wetland
• Area of rising groundwater
• Fremont Cottonwoods, red willow, and 

mulefat at higher relative elevations. Also 
contains tamarisk and arundo

• Rooting depth of cottonwood and willows 
6.7‐10 ft

• Effluent releases from Los Angeles County 
may be important for maintaining the 
GDE

Cienega Riparian 
Complex GDE Unit

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Black
cottonwood
woodland
and forest

Common and
giant reed
marshes

Mulefat
thickets

Red willow
riparian
woodland
and forest

Willow

A
cr
es

Vegetation Community

 Piru GWB Fillmore GWB

• Historical wetland
• Area of rising groundwater
• Prior to 2012‐2016 had extensive 

cottonwoods and willows which died during 
the drought (see Chris Kliber presentation) 

• Now some willow but mostly mulefat, and 
arundo. 



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

6

East Grove Riparian 
Complex

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Black
cottonwood
woodland and

forest

Common and
giant reed
marshes

Eucalyptus ‐
tree of heaven
‐ black locust

groves

Mulefat
thickets

Red willow
riparian

woodland and
forest

A
cr
es

Vegetation Community

Fillmore GWB

• Historical wetland
• Area of rising groundwater
• Most extensive GDE Unit
• Cottonwood and willows 

(rooting depth 7‐10 ft)
• Mulefat at the higher relative 

elevation (rooting depth 2 ft)

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

California
sagebrush scrub

Common and
giant reed
marshes

Eucalyptus ‐ tree
of heaven ‐ black
locust groves

Mulefat thickets Sandbar willow
thickets

A
cr
es

Vegetation Community

 Piru GWB Fillmore GWB

Santa Clara River Riparian 
Shrubland

• Intermittent section of the 
stream (no rising groundwater)

• Vegetation is primarily Mulefat
(rooting depth ~ 2 ft) with some 
sandbar willows and invasive 
plants (e.g., arundo)

• May use groundwater when it is 
high, but not likely sensitive to 
groundwater management



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

7

Other GDE Units Tributary riparian 
• (mostly oaks, little groundwater data) 

deep roots (30 ft) little groundwater 
data

• No shallow groundwater 
measurements. 

• Unlikely to be affected by 
groundwater management

Sespe Creek Riparian
• (cottonwood, willow, arundo). 

Shallow groundwater unknown 
rooting depths of willows and 
cottonwoods = 7 ft, average relative 
elevation is 10 ft in SCR.

• Few shallow groundwater 
measurements

Piru Creek Riparian
• Cottonwood, willow (roots 7‐10 ft) 

and mulefat (root depth 2 ft)
• Releases from Santa Felicia Dam
• Few shallow groundwater 

measurements

Groundwater

‐5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

1/1/1970 1/1/1980 1/1/1990 1/1/2000 1/1/2010 1/1/2020

D
ep

th
 t
o
 G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
er
 (
ft
. b

gs
)

East Grove
Cienega

The east grove well is 10‐20 
ft above the GDE elevation

• Groundwater levels decline during droughts but 
subsequently recover

• Model results presented in January predict that climate 
change will not significantly alter groundwater levels

• Droughts have the largest impacts on GDEs, lowering 
the groundwater level below the rooting depth of 
vegetation



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

8

Rising Groundwater

Figure courtesy of United 
Water

• The extent of rising groundwater declined during the 
drought. This decline mirrored changes in groundwater 
levels. 

• The downstream end of the East Grove maintained 
surface flow through the drought. 

• Dry season rising groundwater in the Cienega Riparian 
Complex was not present after 2013.

Tracking GDE Health

Source: https://www.agricolus.com/en/indici‐vegetazione‐ndvi‐ndmi‐istruzioni‐luso/

NDVI
Normalized Differential Vegetation Index
How green are the plants?
 Increases in NDVI correspond to higher 

plant density and leaf area



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

9

Changes in GDE health 
(NDVI)

1

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

4

3 2

NDVI Change East Grove Riparian Complex

• Generally steady or 
improving GDEs

• Some decline at upstream 
end of GDE during 2012‐
2016 drought

• Groundwater declined by 
~20 ft at one well



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

10

NDVI Change Cienega Riparian Complex

• Extensive cottonwood and 
willow die off during 2012‐
2016 drought. 

• Groundwater levels dropped 
significantly (> 15 ft and up 
to 30 ft)

NDVI Change Del Valle Complex

• Extensive cottonwood and 
willow die off during 2012‐
2016 drought. 

• Groundwater levels dropped 
significantly (> 15 ft and up 
to 30 ft)



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

11

Groundwater dependent special status species
GDE Unit Basin Plants Wildlife Fish

Natural 
Communities

Del Valle Riparian Complex Piru 2 7  2 3

Santa Clara River Riparian 
Shrubland

Piru 0 2 2 3

Cienega Riparian Complex Piru 1 6 4 0

Piru Creek Riparian Piru 1 7 4 5

Tributary Riparian Piru 3 0 0 1

East Grove Riparian 
Complex

Fillmore  1 7 4 4

Santa Clara River Riparian 
Shrubland

Fillmore 0 7 2 4

Cienega Riparian Complex Fillmore 1 5 4 1

Tributary Riparian Fillmore 2 0 0 1

Sespe Creek Riparian 
Complex

Fillmore 0 4 4 2

Within the two groundwater basins, five special status plants, 11 natural communities, 10 wildlife, and four 
fish species were identified as indirectly or directly groundwater dependent  

• Critical habitat for 
California Condor, 
least Bell’s vireo, 
Southwestern 
willow flycatcher, 
and Southern 
California 
steelhead.

Critical Habitat (USFWS) for 4 species



FPBGSA Board Meeting 3/10/2021

12

Summary
• We identified 8 GDE units in the Fillmore and Piru basin. The GDE units at the basin boundaries (Del 
Valle, Cienega, and East Grove riparian complexes) are areas of rising groundwater and perennial 
flow

• Groundwater dependent vegetation includes willows, cottonwoods, and exotic species like arundo. 

• Groundwater elevations decline during droughts to below the rooting depth of GDEs. Rising 
groundwater did not occur after 2013 in the Cienega Riparian Complex

• The 2012–2016 drought caused a decline in vegetation health throughout the Cienega Riparian 
complex and at the upstream margin of the East Grove Riparian Complex, and the downstream 
margin of the Del Valle Riparian Complex. The groundwater elevation at the Cienega riparian complex 
dropped 30 ft.

• The NDVI decline during the late 1980s early 1990s drought was similar to 2012–2016 in the Cienega 
Riparian Complex but NDVI recovered within a couple of years in the early 1990s.

• 19 groundwater‐dependent special status species are likely to occur in the basins. 



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

1

Item 4B ‐ Sustainable Management Criteria

• SMC Matrix

•Overview of SMC Rationale 

• SW Depletion from GW Pumping ‐ Stream Flow Cross 
Over Analyses

• SMC Matrix

SMC Undesirable Results Metric MT MO Comments

GW Elevation Loss of ability to pump GW GW elevation

WL declines below the 
base of well screens in 
more than 25% of 

representative wells

GW levels at 2011 high WL maximizes range between MT and MO

GW Storage 
Reduction

inadequate GW storage to 
last through multi‐year 
drought without GW 
extraction limitations

GW elevation
WLs equivalent to the 
estimated historical low 

WLs
GW levels at 2011 high WL maximizes range between MT and MO

SW Depletion

Surface water flow 
declines due to GSP 
implementation that 
interfere with the 

beneficial use and users

Rising GW rates at the 
Fillmore‐Piru basin 
boundary (Fish 

Hatchery) / Depth to 
GW at the Fillmore ‐
Piru basin boundary 

The GSP does not propose projects or management actions that 
would change the operational regime of the basins.  Therefore, 

implementation of the GSP does not cause significant and 
unreasonable effects.  No beneficial users or uses are materially 

impacted by implementation of the GSP.

Land 
Subsidence

Land subsidence amounts 
that interfere with 

infrastructure operations
Subsidence rates

Total inelastic subsidence 
of 1ft/yr or 1ft over 5 yrs

Inelastic subsidence rates within +/‐
0.05 ft/yr as determined by InSAR

Monitor subsidence amount ‐ InSAR
data from DWR; trigger at GW 

elevation lower than the estimated 
historical low 

Degraded WQ
Water quality degradation 
that impairs the beneficial 

use of the resource
WQ values

Water quality parameters 
established in existing or 

future regulations

FPBGSA is not a water purveyor and 
lacks regulatory authority for WQ 

compliance, but will cooperate with 
appropriately empowered entities

Seawater 
Intrusion

NA NA NA NA



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

2

Sea Water Intrusion

• Not a realistic concern for Fillmore or Piru basins

• Western edge of Fillmore basin is approx. 16 miles from 
coastline

• Western edge of Fillmore basin elevation is approx. 300 ft 
above msl

Water Quality Degradation
• Concerned with water quality degradation caused by the implementation 
of the GSP

• Generally, no major water quality issues in the basins

oChloride concentrations in waste water treatment plant effluent discharged to 
SCR

• Continue with monitoring program (GW and SW)

• FPBGSA lacks regulatory authority to enforce water quality regulations, 
but can be a cooperative agency to County of Ventura, RWQCB, DTSC, 
etc.



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

3

Groundwater Levels

• Long‐term, chronic water level decline

• Impacts of water level declines in beneficial uses and users
oGW extractions by MUNI, IRRIG, DOM users

oRelated to surface water depletion

• Examined long‐term future GW conditions including climate change

0

10

20

30

40

50

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

0

10

20

30

40

50

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

2070CF Precipitation 2070CF _5yrMovingAverage

Piru Basin Annual (Water Year) Precipitation

Fillmore Basin Annual (Water Year) Precipitation

1943 1958 1976 1989 2005 2019Historic  Equivalent Date



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

4

‐100

‐80

‐60

‐40

‐20

0

20

40

60

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

2070CF Precipitation 2070CF Cumulative Departure
2070CF _5yrMovingAverage 2070CF_Precip_Average

201920051976 1989

Historic  Equivalent Date
1958

Piru Basin Annual (Water 
Year) Precipitation and 
Cumulative Departure 

from Mean 

1943

2005

mid‐1940s 7 yr drought

‐80

‐60

‐40

‐20

0

20

40

60

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

2070CF Precipitation 2070CF Cumulative Departure

2070CF _5yrMovingAverage 2070CF_Precip_Average

Fillmore Basin Annual 
(Water Year) 

Precipitation  and 
Cumulative Departure 

from Mean



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

5

Dry Well Evaluation

No production wells are expected to go dry
• Nine (9) shallow production 

wells that went “dry” at 
various months, according 
to the model, were 
evaluated and determined 
to not be dry based on 
measurements.

• Wells most susceptible to 
getting close to dry 
conditions are <100 ft 
deep, on average.

• Shallow monitoring wells 
are expected to go (and 
have gone) dry periodically.

• Based on UWCD model 
(Projected 2070CF) results

production well

monitoring well

Modeled Dry Wells 
(≥1 month)

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

6

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

7

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

8

Groundwater Storage

• GW in storage to last through future droughts

• Storage is critical element for these basins ‐ dependent on GW

Forecasted Annual Pumping & Cumulative Change in Storage



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

9

Subsidence

• Ground subsidence due to groundwater extractions, only
• Other potential subsidence factors

oOil and gas extraction

o Tectonic activity

• No anecdotal evidence of historical subsidence even with drought‐
induced low water levels

• Future GW conditions not likely low enough to trigger subsidence

• Previous investigations and reports;
• Geodetic surveys;
• Interferometric Synthetic Aperture 

Radar (InSAR) data;
• Subsidence evaluations / potentials.

Land Subsidence Evaluation 



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

10

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
1. Fillmore-Santa Paula Basin Boundary

Gray bar denotes measurement  accuracy range of +0.05 to ‐0.05 feet (Towill,  2020).

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
2. Sespe Uplands

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
3. Bardsdale

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
4. City of Fillmore

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
5. Fillmore-Piru Basin Boundary

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
6. Central Piru Basin

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15 7. Piru Creek/Santa Clara River Confluence

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
8. Piru-SCR Valley East Basin Boundary

Ve
rti

ca
l D

isp
la

ce
m

en
t(

fe
et

)

Total Cumulative Displacement Moving Annual Displacement

Time‐Series Graphs of 
Annual and Total Land 
Surface Elevation 

Changes derived from 
InSAR

InSAR Data showing 
Total Vertical 

Displacement within 
the Basins. 



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

11

Future Subsidence Potential ‐ Representative Wells

2070CF 
Modeled Water 

Levels v. 
Estimated 

Historical Low 
Water Level at 
Representative 

Wells



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

12

Projected 
(2070CF) ‐
Estimated 
Historical 
Low (2016 
low ‐20 ft) 
GW level

Basin

Hydro‐
stratigraphic 

Setting 
Susceptibility*

Chronic 
Declines in 

Groundwater 
Levels

Geodetic / 
Extensometer / 

Tiltmeter 
Evidence of 
Subsidence

InSAR
Evidence of 
Subsidence

Subsidence 
Susceptibility

Ranking

Fillmore 
Low to 

Moderate
No No No Low

Piru Low No No No Very Low

Summary of (Inelastic) Subsidence Potential

* Low ‐ thinner, possibly discontinuous fine‐grained layers
Moderate ‐ fine grained layer typically a few 10s of feet thick



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

13

Surface Water ‐ Groundwater Interaction

• Surface water depletion due to GW extractions

• Impacts of water level declines on beneficial uses and users
oGDEs

o Surface water diversions

Fish Hatchery

Willard Rd

• Important GDEs at basin boundaries

• ~29 vegetation communities ‐ cottonwoods & willows
• Special status animal species ‐ Three‐spine stickleback, western pond 

turtle, Least Bell’s Vireo, Southwestern Willow Flycatcher, Bank Swallow
• ~4 Special status plants

Preliminary Image ‐ Subject to Revision ‐ Do Not Cite or 
Reference

31D04S

01C04S



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

14

Water Level ‐ Stream Flow Cross Over Analyses

y = 0.00013x3 ‐ 0.19429x2 + 98.62159x ‐ 16,699.78083
R² = 0.95161

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

480 490 500 510 520 530 540 550 560 570 580

D
is
ch
ar
ge
 F
is
h
 H
at
ch
er
y 
(c
fs
)

WLE, well 04N18W31D04S (ft)

Willard Road Fish Hatchery

Difference in Average Annual Pumping per Basin

Fillmore Piru

Pumping Scenario AFY % AFY %

Turn_off_SCR_main_stem_wells_in_A+B ‐24,027 53% ‐6,201 49%

Wells Pumping

Scenario Fillmore Piru

1985_to_2019 364 128

Turn_off_SCR_main_stem_wells_in_A+B 234 59

# of Wells Turned Off 130 69

% of Wells Turned Off 36% 54%



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

15

Rising Groundwater near Willard Rd

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
(S
u
rf
ac
e
 W

at
e
r)
, c
fs

Rising Groundwater (Surface Water)

Willard Rd ‐ no pumping Willard Rd ‐ pumping



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

16

How quickly does 
Willard Road reach of 

SCR go dry?

• Wetted reach begins to shrink within 2‐
3 years

• Probably dry within 5‐6 years

Rising Groundwater near Fish Hatchery

Fillmore 
Basin

Piru 
Basin



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

17

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
(S
u
rf
ac
e
 W

at
e
r)
, c
fs

Rising Groundwater (Surface Water) ‐ Fish Hatchery

Fish Hatchery ‐ no pumping Fish Hatchery ‐ pumping

w/o pumping ‐ 9% months (126) have 0 rising GW
with pumping ‐ 28% months (373) have 0 rising GW

0

5

10

15

20

25

C
h
an

ge
 in

 R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
, c
fs

Change in Rising GW with and w/o Pumping

Fish Hatchery 2070CF Fish Hatchery historical

2070CF SW 
REDUCTION
mean 5.1 cfs
median 4.8 cfs
max 24.0 cfs
min 0 cfs

1985‐2020 SW 
REDUCTION
mean 3.7 cfs
median 3.8 cfs
max 20.2 cfs
min 0.0 cfs



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

18

0

5

10

15

20

25

C
h
an

ge
 in

 R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
, c
fs

Change in Rising GW with and w/o Pumping 
Correlative Climate Periods

Fish Hatchery 2070CF Fish Hatchery historical

2067‐2096
2070CF 
SW REDUCTION
mean 5.1 cfs
median 4.6 cfs
max 24.0 cfs
min 0 cfs

1990‐2019 
Historical 
SW REDUCTION
mean 3.8 cfs
median 3.8 cfs
max 20.2 cfs
min 0.0 cfs

350

370

390

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
El
ev
at
io
n
, f
t 
am

sl

Modeled GW Elevation near Fish Hatchery SW Monitoring Site

FishHatchery‐pumping Land Surface 2011 Low WL Critical WL



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

19

350

370

390

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
El
ev
at
io
n
, f
t 
am

sl

Modeled GW Elevation near Fish Hatchery SW Monitoring Site

FishHatchery‐pumping Land Surface 2011 Low WL Critical WL FishHatchery‐no pumping

• SMC focused on reaches of the Santa Clara River at the F‐P & SP‐F basin 
boundaries with rising GW

• No or limited beneficial uses and users of the SW in these areas

• GDEs present along those reaches  Birds ‐ Amphibians ‐ Vegetation
Drought periods create multi‐month sequences with no rising GW with or without 
GW pumping 

Drought periods create multi‐month sequences with GW level declines greater than 
the critical water level decline of ~10 ft

Surface Water ‐ Groundwater 
Interaction / SW Depletion

Does the FPBGSA have a responsibility to mitigate drought impacts if 
those impacts are not any more severe than pre‐Jan 2015 impacts?



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

20

SMCs ‐ General Framework

• Lowering GW Levels ‐ no chronic decline in water levels

• Reduction of GW Storage ‐ no chronic decline in GW storage

• Seawater Intrusion ‐ not applicable

• Degraded Water Quality ‐ no regulatory authority over WQ / work with 
existing agencies with appropriate regulatory authority

• Land Subsidence ‐ not reported during historical past and not anticipated 
during future climate & pumping conditions

• Surface Water Depletion ‐ rates of SW depletion in future not materially 
greater than Jan 2015 ‐ in droughts multi‐month periods with zero rising GW 
with or w/o pumping & GW levels below critical WL in severe droughts 

SMC Undesirable Results Metric MT MO Comments

GW Elevation Loss of ability to pump GW GW elevation

WL declines below the 
base of well screens in 
more than 25% of 

representative wells

GW levels at 2011 high WL maximizes range between MT and MO

GW Storage 
Reduction

inadequate GW storage to 
last through multi‐year 
drought without GW 
extraction limitations

GW elevation
WLs equivalent to the 
estimated historical low 

WLs
GW levels at 2011 high WL maximizes range between MT and MO

SW Depletion

Surface water flow 
declines due to GSP 
implementation that 
interfere with the 

beneficial use and users

Rising GW rates at the 
Fillmore‐Piru basin 
boundary (Fish 

Hatchery) / Depth to 
GW at the Fillmore ‐
Piru basin boundary 

The GSP does not propose projects or management actions that 
would change the operational regime of the basins.  Therefore, 

implementation of the GSP does not cause significant and 
unreasonable effects.  No beneficial users or uses are materially 

impacted by implementation of the GSP.

Land 
Subsidence

Land subsidence amounts 
that interfere with 

infrastructure operations
Subsidence rates

Total inelastic subsidence 
of 1ft/yr or 1ft over 5 yrs

Inelastic subsidence rates within +/‐
0.05 ft/yr as determined by InSAR

Monitor subsidence amount ‐ InSAR
data from DWR; trigger at GW 

elevation lower than the estimated 
historical low 

Degraded WQ
Water quality degradation 
that impairs the beneficial 

use of the resource
WQ values

Water quality parameters 
established in existing or 

future regulations

FPBGSA is not a water purveyor and 
lacks regulatory authority for WQ 

compliance, but will cooperate with 
appropriately empowered entities

Seawater 
Intrusion

NA NA NA NA



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

21

Representative Monitoring Sites

B and C zone nested 
(RP1) monitoring well

Representative Monitoring Sites

Groundwater Elevation (ft‐msl)
(Projected [2070CF] Low)
(Estimated Historical Low)
(Bottom of Screen)

Bottom of Screen

Statistic Depth (ft)

min 104

50% 380

max 1100

B and C zone nested 
(RP1) monitoring well



FPBGSA Board Meeting 03/18/21

22

Questions?



 
Special Board of Directors Meeting 

April 1, 2021 
Via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Directors Present 
Director Kelly Long, Chair  
Director Ed McFadden, Vice Chair/Secretary 
Director Gordon Kimball 
Director Candice Meneghin  
Director Glen Pace 
Director Christina Villaseñor 
 
Staff Present 
Anthony Emmert, Executive Director 
Steve O’Neill, Legal Counsel 
Eva Ibarra, Clerk of the Board 
 
Public Present 
Gary Ball 
Lisa Ballin, CSUS/DBS&A 
Bryan Bondy, Fillmore and Piru Pumpers Associations 
Christian Brodrick, Stillwater Science 
Katie Brokaw 
Guy Cole 
Dayanna Costa 
Dan Detmer, UWCD 
Michael Fetchner 
Carole Fornoff 
Matt Freeman 
David Grant 
Burt Handy 
Logan Hardison 
Gosta Iwasiuk 
Debbie Jackson 
Rachel Laenen  
Bill Lindsay 
Helen McGrath 
Tony Morgan, DBS&A 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 2 

 

Patrick O’Connell, DBS&A 
EJ Remson, The Nature Conservancy 
Bruce Orr, Stillwater Science 
Eddie Pech, DWR 
Zachary Plummer, UWCD 
Brisa Romero 
Kat Selm, The Nature Conservancy 
Lara Shellenbanger, SCRWC 
Stacie Ann Silva 
Steve Slack, CDFW 
Lita Spencer 
Jeffrey Steinberg 
Dr. Jason Sun, UWCD 
Richard Tate 
Jean Thirkettle 
Roy Thun 
James Thurber 
Ambry Tibay, UWCD 
Jim Van de Water 
Gilead Wurman 
Steven Zimmer 
 

1. Call to Order – First Open Session 5:01 pm 
Chair Long called the meeting to order at 5:01 pm. 

1A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Vice Chair McFadden led the meeting participants in reciting the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

           1B.  Directors Roll Call 
Roll call: (Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, 
Villaseñor); six present.  
 

1C.  Public Comments 
Chair Long asked if there were any public comments; none were offered. 

           1D.   Approval of Agenda 
Motion 
Motion to approve the agenda, Vice Chair McFadden; Second, Director 
Villaseñor. Roll call vote: six ayes (Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair   
McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, Villaseñor); none opposed. Motion carries 6/0. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 
2. STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP  

 
      2A    Board of Directors Opening Statements (this was moved to the end of the meeting) 

       

      2B    Stakeholder Input on Draft Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems  

              Technical Memorandum  
Informational  
The Board received stakeholder input on the draft Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems Technical 
Memorandum.  
 
Vice Chair McFadden commented by saying only two letters had been received and asked if any 
additional letters had been submitted. 
 
Executive Director Anthony Emmert summarized the letters received and asked participants to 
share comments from the letters they may have submitted. 
 
Ms. Lisa Ballin mentioned the GDE Technical Memo will be part of the actual draft GSP that will 
undergo public review once the document is completed. 
 
Chair Long requested clarification on the deadline for receiving comments and letters. 
 

        Mr. Tony Morgan stated there is no deadline but mentioned comments should be received by the 
end of the month of April. 

 
                              EJ Remson said he has, “two concerns, one regarding the GDE’s for the Cienega area and the 

objectives that bring the water levels to pre-drought baseline and rooting depth versus water level. 
  
 Participant chat commented, “I would like to hear a summary of environmental concerns from the 

former GDE Memo.” 
  

                                       Director Meneghin stated she had read all letters, except for the United Water letter, and mentioned 
the concern from Mr. Remsons previous conversation, adding pre-drought baseline had also been 
mentioned in the letter from California Fish and Wildlife. She summarized the comment letters that 
had been received to this point. 

 
 Participant chat, “All the work on GDEs seems to suggest that there is significant interconnection 

between the surface and groundwater systems. This being the case, Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) will likely expect them to be monitoring and measuring integrated Surface Water (ISW) 
using SMC. In the preparation of the Critically Overdraft GSPs, DWR placed heavy emphasis on 
this monitoring component – from their perspective, if the condition changes, even if the does so 
due to natural conditions, the GSA has to keep an eye on it. There is a significant risk that failing 
to address one of the sustainability indicators, that they have identified as existing in the Subbasin, 
could cause their plan to be deemed inadequate or incomplete.  

  
  



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 4 

 
Director Meneghin said, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife has identified that as 

        a data gap, the Agency needs to address the monitoring requirements that are needed or study 
development.  

 
 Director Kimball asked if there are technical studies that quantify the groundwater use of Arundo 

donax. 
  

                Director Meneghin mentioned UCSB did a study on Arundo and provided background on what 
has been done and is being done on the study of eradicating arundo.          

     Chair Long, Mr. Morgan and Dr. Bruce Orr had a brief conversation on Arundo. 
 

             Participant chat commented, “In addition to Steelhead, these GDE's act as critical areas for breeding 
of many migratory songbird species. TNC has been conducting bird point counts on the river since 
2011 and the results of last year are evidence of the importance of these GDEs. Despite the recovery 
from the 5 year drought in the last two wet years (2018-2019), species richness continued to decline 
on most properties from 2011 levels. It is likely that the loss of mature tree cover on the wettest 
properties, which was substantial by 2016/2017, coupled with increased cover of Arundo on most 
properties since the last large scouring event in 2011, are keeping bird species richness and 
abundances depressed. Densities of three special status species remained high on one of our 
properties and that is one where Arundo has been removed and the riparian forest did not experience 
any die off from the last major drought.” 

 
 Participant chat: Here is a source of information on Arundo water consumption: 

https://groundwaterresourcehub.org/public/uploads/pdfs/TNC Arundo_ET_Literature_Review 
Feb2019.pdf  

 
 Chair Long asked Dr. Orr, based on the studies he has done, with the burnt trees from recent 

wildfires, how does this play on the pressure from everything moving down into the river. 
 
 Dr. Orr replied how the process works and how it affects the river. 
  
 Participant chat commented, “The Stillwater report dropped a basket of information on us just a 

week ago.  It seems the board is being asked to make decisions regarding GDEs today considering 
a raft of "could be"," might be" conditions; further, one flood can wipe out a substantial number 
of ecosystems we devote substantial effort and water to conserve beforehand.  At this time, it 
seems appropriate to monitor and further study "potential" conditions, rather than locking in 
requirements that may not be needed in the actual future.”  

 
 Director Meneghin said, Department of Water Resources (DWR) has taught us to identify the 

existing GDEs and as much as that can change, the Board needs to develop the Sustainable 
Management Criteria for what is existing, in case of fire or flood etc. She then provided more 
details of the process. 

  
 Chair Long also expressed what the Board’s role is regarding the GDE’s. Chair Long requested  
                          Mr. Morgan’s input on the subject. 

                   
                   Mr. Morgan provided his input on the process. 

https://groundwaterresourcehub.org/public/uploads/pdfs/


Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 5 

 
 

Director Meneghin mentioned the Friends of the Santa Clara River letter calls for steelhead 
limiting factors to be considered. She stated that Mr. Emmert noted earlier that the Agency has 
already determined that data gaps exist regarding shallow groundwater near the GDEs, and that 
the Agency’s monitoring wells project is intended to close that data gap.  

  
 Participant chat commented, “I agree with Logan. I have attended many of these meetings and 

there is more speculation than actual concrete metrics. It is not appropriate to adopt stringent 
guidelines but proceed as Logan suggests, there are enough overlapping goals amongst 
agriculture, municipal, and environmental stakeholders to focus on now.” 

 
 Vice Chair McFadden asked Mr. Morgan to review the DWR requirements for baseline year, as 

the Board has to be aware of conditions.  
 
                           Mr. Morgan explained the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requirements.  

 
2C         Stakeholder Input on Draft Sustainable Management Criteria Matrix  
                  Informational  

The Board received a brief presentation on the draft Sustainable Management Criteria Matrix 
from Daniel B. Stephens & Associates team (see attached slides). 
 

                                       Director Villaseñor asked Mr. Morgan if he has looked at a longer drought period model. 
  
 Mr. Morgan shared a slide to show how the drought scale is measuring the drought.  
 
 Director Meneghin asked if a ten year drought was modeled? 
  

Mr. Morgan stated that a future drought graph might be steeper, might be deeper. 
 
 Mr. Emmert asked Mr. Morgan if the graph he was using included the DWR climate factors.  
 
 Mr. Morgan said yes, the DWR climate factors are included, and this affects the potential future 

precipitation, and pointed it out on graph. 
 
 Dan Detmer stated that the Agency is required to update its GSPs every 5-years and submit to the 

Department of Water Resources (DWR).  
 
  Mr. Morgan replied that this is to remind the people that, there is a mandatory five-year update, and 

the GSA will also be required to do an annual report. Mr. Morgan shared other scenarios. 
 
 Director Meneghin opened a discussion on surface water criteria, summarizing the Environmental 

groups’ thoughts and recommendations for the matrix. 
  
 Chair Long asked Director Meneghin for clarification of the information she had just shared. 

 
Mr. Emmert commented on the discussion Director Meneghin and Chair Long had, and asked Mr. 
Morgan to show previous slides. 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 6 

 
Chair Long asked Mr. Morgan if the surface water flows in the Willard Road (East Grove) area will 
always be five cubic feet per second (cfs) of water, despite drought conditions. 
 
Mr. Morgan showed the graph and pointed out the conditions produced by the model. 

 
Chair Long stated DWR did not put the basins in the high classification because of the drought, it 
is in case there is more development. 
 
Mr. Morgan stated the reason the GSA is in the high category is because it is groundwater 
dependent; the area does not have other resources of water. 
 
Vice Chair McFadden asked if the East Grove area is a potential steelhead habitat. 
 
Director Meneghin answered Vice Chair McFadden’s question that it is a potential steelhead over-
summering habitat, but no studies have been done to confirm this. 
 
Participant chat commented, “I respectfully disagree, specific objectives of SGMA not does not 
include steelhead recovery.  Please do not confuse natural seasonal streamflow for migration with 
minor flows associated with rising groundwater.” 

 
                                       Director Villaseñor asked Director Meneghin if there is something that can be done to close the 

data gap that she mentioned and have it as part of the SMC looking at data if the GSA cannot come 
up with the measurable threshold (MT) at this time. 

 
 Director Meneghin replied no, in some instances there is not enough information and in others it is 

a matter of having the conversation and coming to agreement on that SMC matrix.  
  
 Participant chat commented, “Please refresh my memory but didn't DWR place our basins as 

impaired primarily because we don't have any other additional sources of water than rain. Therefore, 
building on what Tony just spoke about I believe our basins are not impaired but follow California's 
wet and dry cycles and trying to assume that dry periods will be more prolonged is not an acceptable 
assumption. We could just as easily enter a prolonged wet cycle beginning next year. The reality is 
no one knows the future until it happens and then it becomes history. We cannot risk everything on 
hypothetical potentials but use the current modeling as proposed and then make adjustments every 
5 years if needed. The GDE's are larger than ever because of additional water from L A County and 
continuous releases from the Santa Felicia Dam. 

 
 Mr. Detmer added that 2005 was a record wet year. 
 
 Vice Chair McFadden interjected that 2005 was also a destruction of habitat on the riverbed or 

radical adjustment of habitat unlike he had seen for decades.  Much riparian habitat was displaced 
and swept out to sea. 

  
 Participant chat commented, “If we have to do studies to figure out if steelhead are habitating the 

rising groundwater areas then it probably isn't significant.” 
  
  
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 7 

 
 Participant chat commented, “The Temperature of water being released from the Santa Felicia Dam 

into Piru Creek is generally much cooler because it is discharged from deeper depths of Lake Piru, 
so this released water may be more beneficial to aquatic species than currently realized.” 

 
 Participant chat commented, “GDE communities comprised of willows and cottonwoods require 

scouring and flood events to disperse as they need the mineral soil to germinate. One concern I 
have in dead and dying GDE's along the river is that there will not be that seed source to 
repopulate after a dramatic event like the 2005 floods. Not sure about the longevity of the seed 
banks for these species, maybe Bruce can speak to this? 

 
 Dr. Orr replied that the seeds are not viable for a long period. 
 
 Vice Chair McFadden requested Dr. Orr provide clarification on his answer. 

 

     2D    Stakeholder Input on Draft Sustainable Management Criteria Matrix  
                  Informational  
                  The Board received stakeholder input on the Draft Sustainable Management Criteria Matrix.  
 
3.    MOTION ITEMS  

 
      3A   Sustainable Management Criteria Development  
                  Motion  

The Board agreed on four of the six criteria included in the Sustainable Management Criteria 
matrix for use in developing the draft Groundwater Sustainability Plans:  
1. Groundwater Elevation 
2. Groundwater Storage Reduction 
3. Degraded Water Quality 
4. Seawater Intrusion 
 
Executive Director Emmert shared his thoughts and information on the process of approving the 
SMCs. 
 
Chair Long asked each Director and Vice Chair McFadden to share their feelings and thoughts on 
the process of approving the SMCs. They all summarized their thoughts and agreed to approve 
four out of the six criteria from the Matrix.  
 
Motion to approve four of the six SMC’s (GW Elevation, GW Storage Reduction, Degraded WQ 
and Seawater Intrusion), Vice Chair McFadden; Second, Director Kimball. Roll call vote: six 
ayes (Kimball, Chair Long, Vice Chair McFadden, Meneghin, Pace, Villaseñor); none opposed. 
Motion carries 6/0. 
 

    FUTURE TOPICS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
        Land Subsidence 
         Surface Water Depletion 
         Consider a date for a Special Board Meeting 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency/Stakeholder Workshop 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

April 1, 2021 

Page 8 

 

        ADJOURNMENT: 7:30 pm 

Chair Long adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, April 
15, 2021 or call of the Chair. 

 
  ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 
  Kelly Long, Chair, FPB GSA Board of Directors 
 
I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Fillmore and Piru Basins 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Board of Directors meeting of April 1, 2021. 

 
  ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 
  Eva Ibarra, Clerk of the Board 

 

 



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

1

FPBGSA Special Board Meeting
Item 2C ‐ Draft Sustainable Management Criteria

• SMC Matrix

• Stakeholder Discussion / Input on Draft SMC 

SMC Undesirable Results Metric MT MO Comments

GW Elevation Loss of ability to pump GW GW elevation

WL declines below the 
base of well screens in 
more than 25% of 

representative wells

GW levels at 2011 high WL maximizes range between MT and MO

GW Storage 
Reduction

inadequate GW storage to 
last through multi‐year 
drought without GW 
extraction limitations

GW elevation

*WL declines below the 
base of well screens in 
more than 25% of 

representative wells

GW levels at 2011 high WL maximizes range between MT and MO

SW Depletion

Surface water flow 
declines due to GSP 
implementation that 
interfere with the 

beneficial use and users

Rising GW rates at the 
Fillmore‐Piru basin 
boundary (Fish 

Hatchery) / Depth to 
GW at the Fillmore ‐
Piru basin boundary 

The GSP does not propose projects or management actions that 
would change the operational regime of the basins.  Therefore, 

implementation of the GSP does not cause significant and 
unreasonable effects.  No beneficial users or uses are materially 

impacted by implementation of the GSP.

Land 
Subsidence

Land subsidence amounts 
that interfere with 

infrastructure operations

*Subsidence rates / 
quantity

*Total inelastic 
subsidence of 1.2 in/yr
(0.1 ft/yr) or 0.6 ft over 5 

yrs

Inelastic subsidence rates within +/‐
0.05 ft/yr as determined by InSAR

Monitor subsidence amount ‐ InSAR
data from DWR; trigger at GW 
elevation lower than the
estimated historical low 

Degraded WQ
Water quality degradation 
that impairs the beneficial 

use of the resource
WQ values

Water quality parameters 
established in existing or 

future regulations

FPBGSA is not a water purveyor and 
lacks regulatory authority for WQ 

compliance, but will cooperate with 
appropriately empowered entities

Seawater 
Intrusion

NA NA NA NA

Summary



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

2

Sea Water Intrusion

• Not a realistic concern for Fillmore or Piru basins

• Western edge of Fillmore basin is approx. 16 miles from 
coastline

• Western edge of Fillmore basin elevation is approx. 300 ft 
above msl

Water Quality Degradation
• Concerned with water quality degradation caused by the implementation 
of the GSP

• Generally, no major water quality issues in the basins

oChloride concentrations in waste water treatment plant effluent discharged to 
SCR

• Continue with monitoring program (GW and SW)

• FPBGSA lacks regulatory authority to enforce water quality regulations, 
but can be a cooperative agency to County of Ventura, RWQCB, DTSC, 
etc.



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

3

Groundwater Levels

• Long‐term, chronic water level decline

• Impacts of water level declines in beneficial uses and users
oGW extractions by MUNI, IRRIG, DOM users

oRelated to surface water depletion

• Examined long‐term future GW conditions including climate change

0

10

20

30

40

50

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

0

10

20

30

40

50

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

2070CF Precipitation 2070CF _5yrMovingAverage

Piru Basin Annual (Water Year) Precipitation

Fillmore Basin Annual (Water Year) Precipitation

1943 1958 1976 1989 2005 2019Historic  Equivalent Date



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

4

‐100

‐80

‐60

‐40

‐20

0

20

40

60

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

2070CF Precipitation 2070CF Cumulative Departure
2070CF _5yrMovingAverage 2070CF_Precip_Average

201920051976 1989

Historic  Equivalent Date
1958

Piru Basin Annual (Water 
Year) Precipitation and 
Cumulative Departure 

from Mean 

1943

2005

mid‐1940s 7 yr drought

A 7‐yr drought 
has occurred 
once in 92 yrs
(1928‐2020)

‐80

‐60

‐40

‐20

0

20

40

60

1986 1991 1996 2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 2056 2061 2066 2071 2076 2081 2086 2091 2096

P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n
 (
in
ch
e
s)

2070CF Precipitation 2070CF Cumulative Departure

2070CF _5yrMovingAverage 2070CF_Precip_Average

Fillmore Basin Annual 
(Water Year) 

Precipitation  and 
Cumulative Departure 

from Mean



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

5

Dry Well Evaluation

No production wells are expected to go dry
• Nine (9) shallow production 

wells that went “dry” at 
various months, according 
to the model, were 
evaluated and determined 
to not be dry based on 
measurements.

• Wells most susceptible to 
getting close to dry 
conditions are <100 ft 
deep, on average.

• Shallow monitoring wells 
are expected to go (and 
have gone) dry periodically.

• Based on UWCD model 
(Projected 2070CF) results

production well

monitoring well

Modeled Dry Wells 
(≥1 month)

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

6

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

7

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.

Sample 
Hydrographs

Conclusions
• No evidence of chronic decline 

in GW levels.
• Based on UWCD model results.



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

8

Groundwater Storage

• GW in storage to last through future droughts

• Storage is critical element for these basins ‐ dependent on GW

Forecasted Annual Pumping & Cumulative Change in Storage



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

9

Subsidence

• Ground subsidence due to groundwater extractions, only
• Other potential subsidence factors

oOil and gas extraction

o Tectonic activity

• No anecdotal evidence of historical subsidence even with drought‐
induced low water levels

• Future GW conditions not likely low enough to trigger subsidence

• Previous investigations and reports;
• Geodetic surveys;
• Interferometric Synthetic Aperture 

Radar (InSAR) data;
• Subsidence evaluations / potentials.

Land Subsidence Evaluation 



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

10

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
1. Fillmore-Santa Paula Basin Boundary

Gray bar denotes measurement  accuracy range of +0.05 to ‐0.05 feet (Towill,  2020).

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
2. Sespe Uplands

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
3. Bardsdale

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
4. City of Fillmore

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
5. Fillmore-Piru Basin Boundary

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
6. Central Piru Basin

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15 7. Piru Creek/Santa Clara River Confluence

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15
8. Piru-SCR Valley East Basin Boundary

Ve
rti

ca
l D

isp
la

ce
m

en
t(

fe
et

)

Total Cumulative Displacement Moving Annual Displacement

Time‐Series Graphs of 
Annual and Total Land 
Surface Elevation 

Changes derived from 
InSAR

InSAR Data showing 
Total Vertical 

Displacement within 
the Basins. 



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

11

Future Subsidence Potential ‐ Representative Wells

2070CF 
Modeled Water 

Levels v. 
Estimated 

Historical Low 
Water Level at 
Representative 

Wells



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

12

Projected 
(2070CF) ‐
Estimated 
Historical 
Low (2016 
low ‐20 ft) 
GW level

Basin

Hydro‐
stratigraphic 

Setting 
Susceptibility*

Chronic 
Declines in 

Groundwater 
Levels

Geodetic / 
Extensometer / 

Tiltmeter 
Evidence of 
Subsidence

InSAR
Evidence of 
Subsidence

Subsidence 
Susceptibility

Ranking

Fillmore 
Low to 

Moderate
No No No Low

Piru Low No No No Very Low

Summary of (Inelastic) Subsidence Potential

* Low ‐ thinner, possibly discontinuous fine‐grained layers
Moderate ‐ fine grained layer typically a few 10s of feet thick



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

13

Surface Water ‐ Groundwater Interaction

• Surface water depletion due to GW extractions

• Impacts of water level declines on beneficial uses and users
oGDEs

o Surface water diversions

Fish Hatchery

Willard Rd

• Important GDEs at basin boundaries

• ~29 vegetation communities ‐ cottonwoods & willows
• Special status animal species ‐ Three‐spine stickleback, western pond 

turtle, Least Bell’s Vireo, Southwestern Willow Flycatcher, Bank Swallow
• ~4 Special status plants

Preliminary Image ‐ Subject to Revision ‐ Do Not Cite or 
Reference

31D04S

01C04S



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

14

Water Level ‐ Stream Flow Cross Over Analyses

y = 0.00013x3 ‐ 0.19429x2 + 98.62159x ‐ 16,699.78083
R² = 0.95161

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

480 490 500 510 520 530 540 550 560 570 580

D
is
ch
ar
ge
 F
is
h
 H
at
ch
er
y 
(c
fs
)

WLE, well 04N18W31D04S (ft)

Willard Road Fish Hatchery

Difference in Average Annual Pumping per Basin

Fillmore Piru

Pumping Scenario AFY % AFY %

Turn_off_SCR_main_stem_wells_in_A+B ‐24,027 53% ‐6,201 49%

Wells Pumping

Scenario Fillmore Piru

1985_to_2019 364 128

Turn_off_SCR_main_stem_wells_in_A+B 234 59

# of Wells Turned Off 130 69

% of Wells Turned Off 36% 54%



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

15

Rising Groundwater near Willard Rd

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
(S
u
rf
ac
e
 W

at
e
r)
, c
fs

Rising Groundwater (Surface Water)

Willard Rd ‐ no pumping Willard Rd ‐ pumping



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

16

How quickly does 
Willard Road reach of 

SCR go dry?

• Wetted reach begins to shrink within 2‐
3 years

• Probably dry within 5‐6 years

Rising Groundwater near Fish Hatchery

Fillmore 
Basin

Piru 
Basin



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

17

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
(S
u
rf
ac
e
 W

at
e
r)
, c
fs

Rising Groundwater (Surface Water) ‐ Fish Hatchery

Fish Hatchery ‐ no pumping Fish Hatchery ‐ pumping

w/o pumping ‐ 9% months (126) have 0 rising GW
with pumping ‐ 28% months (373) have 0 rising GW

0

5

10

15

20

25

C
h
an

ge
 in

 R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
, c
fs

Change in Rising GW with and w/o Pumping

Fish Hatchery 2070CF Fish Hatchery historical

2070CF SW 
REDUCTION
mean 5.1 cfs
median 4.8 cfs
max 24.0 cfs
min 0 cfs

1985‐2020 SW 
REDUCTION
mean 3.7 cfs
median 3.8 cfs
max 20.2 cfs
min 0.0 cfs



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

18

0

5

10

15

20

25

C
h
an

ge
 in

 R
is
in
g 
G
ro
u
n
d
, c
fs

Change in Rising GW with and w/o Pumping 
Correlative Climate Periods

Fish Hatchery 2070CF Fish Hatchery historical

2067‐2096
2070CF 
SW REDUCTION
mean 5.1 cfs
median 4.6 cfs
max 24.0 cfs
min 0 cfs

1990‐2019 
Historical 
SW REDUCTION
mean 3.8 cfs
median 3.8 cfs
max 20.2 cfs
min 0.0 cfs

350

370

390

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
El
ev
at
io
n
, f
t 
am

sl

Modeled GW Elevation near Fish Hatchery SW Monitoring Site

FishHatchery‐pumping Land Surface 2011 Low WL Critical WL



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

19

350

370

390

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
e
r 
El
ev
at
io
n
, f
t 
am

sl

Modeled GW Elevation near Fish Hatchery SW Monitoring Site

FishHatchery‐pumping Land Surface 2011 Low WL Critical WL FishHatchery‐no pumping

• SMC focused on reaches of the Santa Clara River at the F‐P & SP‐F basin 
boundaries with rising GW

• No or limited beneficial uses and users of the SW in these areas

• GDEs present along those reaches  Birds ‐ Amphibians ‐ Vegetation
Drought periods create multi‐month sequences with no rising GW with or without 
GW pumping 

Drought periods create multi‐month sequences with GW level declines greater than 
the critical water level decline of ~10 ft

Surface Water ‐ Groundwater 
Interaction / SW Depletion

Does the FPBGSA have a responsibility to mitigate drought impacts if 
those impacts are not any more severe than pre‐Jan 2015 impacts?



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

20

SMCs ‐ General Framework

• Minimize Unreasonable Impact to Users and Uses of Groundwater ‐ for 
example, DOM ‐ MUNI ‐ IRRIG ‐ ENV ‐ REC

• Avoid Significant and Unreasonable Impacts ‐ defined by Board of Directors 
with input from stakeholders

• Jan 2015 is the statutory baseline ‐ (i.e., GSA is not obligated to restore, 
recreate, re‐establish, or improve groundwater conditions to pre‐Jan 2015 
conditions)

• Achieve sustainability by 2042

SMCs ‐ General Framework

• Lowering GW Levels ‐ no chronic decline in water levels / wells do not go dry 
in future climate change scenarios

• Reduction of GW Storage ‐ no chronic decline in GW storage

• Seawater Intrusion ‐ not applicable

• Degraded Water Quality ‐ no regulatory authority over WQ / work with 
existing agencies with appropriate regulatory authority



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

21

SMCs ‐ General Framework

• Land Subsidence ‐ not reported during historical past and not anticipated 
during future climate & pumping conditions

• Surface Water Depletion ‐

 in areas of rising GW, impacts of GW extraction near SCR in the future (2020+) are not materially greater 
than historical (1985‐2020) (median      = 1 cfs)

 in severe, multi‐decadal droughts multi‐month periods with zero rising GW with or w/o pumping & GW 
levels below critical WL

 in droughts of typical duration (e.g., 3‐5 yrs) there are periods with zero rising GW with or w/o pumping 
(but fewer that for multi‐decadal droughts)

GDEs in Fish Hatchery and Willard Rd areas are transient in nature ‐ subject to droughts and flooding

GW extractions near SCR turned off in model at access impacts (reduction of ~30,200 AFY [~50% 
decrease]) 

Representative Monitoring Sites

B and C zone nested 
(RP1) monitoring well



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

22

Representative Monitoring Sites

Groundwater Elevation (ft‐msl)
(Projected [2070CF] Low)
(Estimated Historical Low)
(Bottom of Screen)

Bottom of Screen

Statistic Depth (ft)

min 104

50% 380

max 1100

B and C zone nested 
(RP1) monitoring well



FPBGSA Special Board Meeting 04/01/21

23

Questions?



 8:35 AM
 04/08/21

 Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA

 Check Detail
 April 8, 2021

Type Num Date Name Account Original Amount

Bill Pmt -Check 11117 04/08/2021 United Water Conservation District 10000 ꞏ Bank of the Sierra -28,058.48

-28,058.48

 Page 1 of 1



  

Item No.   3C Consent Calendar 

DATE:  April 15, 2021 

TO:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT:   Monthly Financial Report  

SUMMARY 

The Board will receive the monthly financial report for the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (Agency). 

BACKGROUND 

UWCD accounting staff has prepared financial reports based on the Agency revenue and expenses for 
the month of March 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 

Attachments: March 28, 2021 P/L Budget Performance  
  March 28, 2021 Balance Sheet  
 

   
   
 

 
 

 



 Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 July through March 2021

Jul - Mar 21 Annual Budget Budget

Income

40001 · Groundwater Extraction Charge 406,743.96 540,000.00 75.32%

41000 · Grant Revenue

41001 · State Grants 122,926.26 698,246.00 17.61%

Total 41000 · Grant Revenue 122,926.26 698,246.00

47000 · Other Revenue

47001 · Late Fees 4,144.75 0.00

47012 · Returned Check Charges 20.00 0.00

Total 47000 · Other Revenue 4,164.75 0.00

Total Income 533,834.97 1,238,246.00

Gross Profit 533,834.97 1,238,246.00 43.11%

Expense

52200 · Professional Services

52240 · Prof Svcs - IT Consulting 1,125.70 980.00 114.87%

52250 · Prof Svcs - Groundwtr/GSP Prep

52251 · Prof Svcs - UWCD GW Services 5,620.28 50,000.00 11.24%

52252 · Prof Svcs - GSP Consultant 348,748.58 350,814.00 99.41%

Total 52250 · Prof Svcs - Groundwtr/GSP Prep 354,368.86 400,814.00 88.41%

52270 · Prof Svcs - Accounting 12,683.03 10,000.00 126.83%

52275 · Prof Svcs - Admin/Clerk of Bd 20,922.44 10,000.00 209.22%

52280 · Prof Svcs - Executive Director 38,103.79 40,000.00 95.26%

52290 · Prof Svcs - Other 0.00 1,000.00

Total 52200 · Professional Services 427,203.82 462,794.00 92.31%

52500 · Legal Fees

52501 · Legal Counsel 18,081.10 20,000.00

Total 52500 · Legal Fees 18,081.10 20,000.00 90.41%

53000 · Office Expenses

53010 · Public Information 0.00 1,000.00

53020 · Office Supplies 565.69 500.00 113.14%

53026 · Postage & Mailing 1,170.75 2,000.00 58.54%

53040 · Membership Dues 0.00 0.00

53060 · Computer Software 0.00 0.00

53110 · Travel & Training 53.74 4,000.00

Total 53000 · Office Expenses 1,790.18 7,500.00 23.87%

53500 · Insurance

53510 · Liability Insurance 2,115.73 2,500.00 84.63%

Total 53500 · Insurance 2,115.73 2,500.00

70000 · Interest & Debt Service

70120 · Interest Expense 0.00 0.00

Total 70000 · Interest & Debt Service 0.00 0.00

70130 · Bank Service Charges 20.00 0.00

80000 · AR Write-Offs - Bad Debt Exp. 0.00 0.00

81000 · Capital Expenditures 0.00 200,000.00

Total Expense 449,210.83 692,794.00 64.84%
Net Income 84,624.14 545,452.00 15.51%

 Page 1 of 1



 Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA

 Balance Sheet
 As of March 31 2021

Mar 31, 21

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

10000 · Bank of the Sierra 317,106.83

Total Checking/Savings 317,106.83

Accounts Receivable

11000 · Accounts Receivable 546,326.11

Total Accounts Receivable 546,326.11

Total Current Assets 863,432.94
TOTAL ASSETS 863,432.94

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 28,058.48

Total Accounts Payable 28,058.48

Total Current Liabilities 28,058.48

Total Liabilities 28,058.48

Equity

32000 · Retained Earnings 750,750.32

Net Income 84,624.14

Total Equity 835,374.46
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 863,432.94

 Page 1 of 1



  

Item No.   4A Motion 

DATE:  April 7, 2021 (for April 15, 2021 meeting) 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:  Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 2021-01 Waiver of Late Fees and Interest on Groundwater Charges 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will consider adopting Resolution Number 2021-01 amending the Agency Bylaws to authorize 

the Executive Director to approve waiver of certain late fees and interest charges associated with 

groundwater pumping fees.  

BACKGROUND 

The Agency’s Bylaws provide for the waiver of late fees and interest associated with groundwater 
charges.  Currently, all requests must be brought before the Board of Directors. 
 
The Agency has recently received several requests for waivers of late fees and interest.  Reasons for the 
recent late fees include deaths of the primary property owner or well operator; changes of property 
owner or well operator due to property sale or terminations of lease; financial hardship due to the 
COVID-19 incident; and mistaken payment sent to the wrong groundwater sustainability agency.  Most 
of these recent requests have involved small dollar values.  Each request brought to the Board for 
consideration requires the preparation of an agenda staff report and staff time to participate in the 
Board meeting.  For many, the cost of staff time to prepare the agenda staff report and attend the 
meeting exceeds the value of the penalty and interest.  During its February 18, 2021 meeting, staff 
recommended that for these smaller value waiver requests the Agency establish a process by which 
they could be approved without bringing them to the Board, thereby saving the Agency the cost of the 
associated staff time. Doing so would also shorten the time between the pumper requesting the waiver 
and receiving a response from the Agency. During its February 18, 2021 meeting, staff proposed the 
following language change to the Agency’s Bylaws, Article 10(f):  
 

By an affirmative vote of four (4) Directors, or three (3) Directors in the event a Director 
is absent, conflicted or prohibited from voting pursuant to 9.3 of the JPAA agreement, 
the Agency may, in its sole discretion, waive any interest payments, penalties, or 
overdue fees.  The Executive Director is authorized to waive delinquent payments and 
associated penalties if the combined amount of the payment due and associated penalty 
does not exceed $250. The Executive Director is also authorized to engage a collection 
agency to collect all accounts delinquent over three months where District collection 
efforts have proven unsuccessful. 

 
The Board of Directors supported the proposed language and directed staff to bring back a Resolution 
amending the Bylaws, as proposed.  Resolution 2021-01 would amend the Agency Bylaws as described. 



Item No: 4A: Waiver of Late Fees and Interest on Groundwater Charges 
April 7, 2021 
Page 2 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Waiving late fees and interest will result in less revenue received by the Agency; however, some savings 
will result in lower expenditures for staff’s time to prepare the request for Board consideration.  
Additionally, late fees and interest are not budgeted by the Agency and waiving the fees and interest 
will not materially impact the Agency’s financial position. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution Number 2021-01 

 
Proposed Motion: Provide comments and direction regarding the proposed edits to the Agency Bylaws. 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball:  Director Long:            Director McFadden:           

Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:  Director Villasenor:  



 
 

 1 
 

 
  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS  
GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

AMENDING THE BYLAWS TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
TO WAIVE CERTAIN LATE PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON 

GROUNDWATER CHARGES 
 
WHEREAS, the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Agency) 
has adopted Bylaws to govern the Agency’s actions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency’s Bylaws, in Article 10(f), establishes the process by which the 
Agency can waive interest payments, penalties, or overdue fees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Agency’s Board of Directors desires to improve the efficiency and 
timeliness of the process by delegating the authority to waive certain interest payments, 
penalties, or overdue fees up to a total of $250 to the Agency’s Executive Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency’s Board of Directors desires to authorize the Executive 
Director to engage a collection agency to collect all accounts delinquent over three 
months where Agency collection efforts have proven unsuccessful;  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Fillmore 
and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency that its Bylaws be amended by 
adding the text contained in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated here into Article 
1(f); and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Bylaws are reaffirmed and readopted in full 
except as expressly set forth herein. 
  
We, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and current Chair and Secretary, 
respectively, of the Board of Directors of Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution was duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by resolution of the Board of Directors of said 
groundwater sustainability agency at a meeting thereof held on the 15th day of April 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
  
In favor thereof, Directors: 
 
 
 Abstain, Directors: 



 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION No. 2021-01 (continued) 
 
 

  2 

 

 
 
 Not in favor, Directors: 
 
 
 Absent, Directors: 
 
 
 
ATTEST:____________________________________ 

     Kelly Long, Chair, FPB GSA Board of Directors 
 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________________________ 

     Edwin T. McFadden III, Vice Chair/Secretary/Treasurer, FPB GSA Board 
      of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION No. 2021-01 (continued) 
 
 

  3 

 

 
Exhibit 1 

 

Amendments to Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Bylaws, Article 10(f) 

 

By an affirmative vote of four (4) Directors, or three (3) Directors in the 
event a Director is absent, conflicted, or prohibited from voting pursuant 
to 9.3 of the JPAA agreement, the Agency may, in its sole discretion, waive 
any interest payments, penalties, or overdue fees.  The Executive Director 
is authorized to waive delinquent payments and associated penalties if the 
combined amount of the payment due and associated penalty does not 
exceed $250. The Executive Director is also authorized to engage a collection 
agency to collect all accounts delinquent over three months where District 
collection efforts have proven unsuccessful. 

 
 



 

 

  

Item No.   4B Motion 

DATE:  April 7, 2021 (for April 15, 2021 meeting) 

TO:  Board of Directors 

VIA:  Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

FROM:  United Water Conservation District Finance Staff   

SUBJECT:   Waiver of Late Fees and Interest for California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

SUMMARY 

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife has requested a waiver of late fees and interest totaling 

$1,687.99.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will consider California Department of Fish and Wildlife’s request for waiver of late fees and 

interest in the amount of $1,687.99 for groundwater pumping associated with its Fillmore Fish Hatchery 

facility. 

BACKGROUND 

Gary Williams, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, contacted Fillmore and Piru Basins 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Agency) staff to request a waiver of late fees and interest on two 

accounts.  The customer stated they processed and mailed out warrants in advance of the billing due 

date, however the US Postal Service did not deliver the warrants until after the billing due date. 

Groundwater extraction invoices are paid in full on both accounts.  Staff recommends the Board 

approve Department of Fish and Wildlife’s request to waive the late fees and interest. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Waiving late fees and interest will result in less revenue received by the Agency in the amount of 
$1.687.99.  However, late fees and interest are not budgeted by the Agency and waiving the fees will 
not materially impact the Agency’s financial position. 

 

 

 
Proposed Motion: “Motion to waive late fees and interest for Department of Fish and Wildlife.” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball:  Director Long:     Director McFadden:           

Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:   Director Villasenor: 



 

 

  

Item No.   4C Motion 

DATE:  April 7, 2021 (for April 15, 2021 meeting) 

TO:  Board of Directors 

VIA:  Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

FROM:  United Water Conservation District Finance Staff   

SUBJECT:   Waiver of Late Fees and Interest for Four Oaks Ranch 

SUMMARY 

Four Oaks Ranch has requested a waiver of late fees and interest totaling $86.38.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will consider Four Oaks Ranch’s request for waiver of late fees and interest in the amount of 

$86.38 for groundwater pumping associated with the Four Oaks Ranch. 

BACKGROUND 

Donna Johanson with Four Oaks Ranch contacted Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency (Agency) staff to request a waiver of late fees and interest on one account. The customer stated 

her husband passed away, leaving her inundated with paperwork, and she was unable to pay the 

invoices on time.  All groundwater extraction invoices are paid in full on this account. Staff recommends 

the Board approve Four Oaks Ranch request for waiver of late fees and interest. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Waiving late fees and interest will result in less revenue received by the Agency in the amount of $86.38.  
However, late fees and interest are not budgeted by the Agency and waiving the fees will not materially 
impact the Agency’s financial position. 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
Proposed Motion: “Motion to waive late fees and interest for Four Oaks Ranch.” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball:  Director Long:     Director McFadden:           

Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:  Director Villasenor: 



  

Item No.   4D Motion 

DATE:  April 7, 2021 (for April 15, 2021 meeting) 

TO:  Board of Directors 

VIA:  Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

FROM:  United Water Conservation District Finance Staff 

SUBJECT:   City of Fillmore Waiver of Late Fees and Interest 

SUMMARY 

City of Fillmore has requested a waiver of late fees and interest totaling $1,163.80. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will consider a request by the City of Fillmore for a waiver of late fees and interest in the 

amount of $1,163.80 for groundwater pumping associated with its municipal water supply wells. 

BACKGROUND 

David Smallwood, City of Fillmore, contacted Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (Agency) staff on March 18, 2021 to request a waiver or late fees and interest on the City’s three 
accounts. He stated invoices and statements were not paid in a timely matter due to internal process 
that have since been corrected.  Groundwater extraction invoices are paid in full on all accounts. Staff 
recommends that the Board approve City of Fillmore’s request for waiver of late fees and interest. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Waiving late fees and interest will result in less revenue received by the Agency in the amount of 
$1,163.80.  However, late fees and interest are not budgeted by the Agency and waiving the fees and 
interest will not materially impact the Agency’s financial position. 

 
Proposed Motion: “Motion to waive late fees and interest for City of Fillmore.” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball:  Director Long:     Director McFadden:           

Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:   Director Villasenor: 



  

Item No.   4E Motion 

DATE:  April 7, 2021 (for April 15, 2021 meeting) 

TO:  Board of Directors 

VIA:  Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

FROM:  United Water Conservation District Finance Staff 

SUBJECT:   Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP Audit Amendment Number 1 

SUMMARY 

The Board will consider an extension of its agreement with Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP for 

financial auditing services. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will consider approving Amendment Number 1 to Agreement 2019-08-21 with Rogers, 

Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP (RAMS) for financial auditing services for the Fiscal Years 2019-2020 and 

2020-2021 for up to $9,200. 

BACKGROUND 

In 2019, the Agency retained RAMS to perform a two-year financial audit for its Fiscal Years 2017-2018 
and 2018-2019, under Agreement 2019-08-21, for a total of $8,000.  RAMS performed the audit and 
presented its findings to the Agency Board of Directors.  Staff recommends that RAMS perform another 
two-year financial audit for its Fiscal Years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021, for up to $9,200.  Approval of 
Amendment Number 1 to Agreement 2019-08-21 would result in a total expenditure for the two two-
year audits to $17,200. Staff recommends the Agency award the audit services work to RAMS.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

The total cost for the FY 2019-2020 and FY 2020-2021 biennial audit and prepare the State Controller’s 
Report is $9,200. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 2019-08-21 

 
Proposed Motion: “Motion to waive late fees and interest for City of Fillmore.” 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball:  Director Long:     Director McFadden:           

Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:   Director Villasenor: 



AMENDMENT NO. 1 

to 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2019-08-21 

between 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

and 

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP 

for 

Auditing Services 

This Amendment No. 1 ("Amendment") to the Professional Services Agreement 

No. 2019-08-21 ("Original Agreement") between Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency, herein "AGENCY", and Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, 

herein "CONSULTANT', collectively referred to as the "PARTIES." The PARTIES agree 

as follows: 

SECTION 1 • PURPOSE 

Under the Original Agreement dated September 12, 2019, the AGENCY retained 

the CONSUL TANT to provide financial auditing services. The PARTIES desire to modify 

the Agreement to reflect additional costs and amended financial auditing services for the 

Fiscal Years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021. 

SECTION 2 - EXPANDED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Exhibit A, "Scope of Services," to the Original Agreement is to remain in effect and 

amended by the addition of Exhibit B "January 27, 2021 Proposal Letter". 

SECTION 3 • TERM 

Section 3 of the Original Agreement, "Term" is amended to reflect the following 

new term: 

"This agreement shall be in effect until the completion of the FY 2019/20 and 

2020/21 audit and submission of the auditor's report. AGENCY will have the option to 

renew this contract for another two-year audit period." 

SECTION 7 ·CONSIDERATION 

Section 7 of the Original Agreement, "Consideration" is amended to reflect the 

following new total payment amount: 

Agreement No. 2019-08-21, Page 1 of 2 
Forrn1G - PRO SVCS - DESIGN - CONSULTANT- LC- 2017-0 



"The AGENCY shall compensate the CONSUL TANT on a time-and-material basis 

at the rates and in the amounts shown in Exhibit B. Total payments shall not exceed 

$17,200, except upon Parties' written agreement." 

SECTION 4 - EFFECT OF AMENDMENT 

Except as expressly amended, supplemented, and modified herein, nothing in this 

Amendment in any way alters or amends the restrictions, rights, or obligations under the 

Original Agreement that are not expressly amended herein, and all other provisions in the 

Original Agreement are hereby ratified, confirmed, and remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be 

executed as of the date of the latest signature below. 

APPROVED: 

Fillmore & Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Kelly Long, Chair 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _______________ Date _____ _ 

Olivarez Madruga Lemieux O'Neill, LLP 

District Counsel 

APPROVED: 

Rogers, ~Malod~LP 

By: ~ Date ------

Name & Title: ---'-J2_,__.:;._t1...L,_ft_ v_ · _JIA._ tt_"_'"'_• _A_""-~--

Agreement No. 2019-08-21, Page 2 of 2 
Form1G - PRO SVCS - DESIGN - CONSULTANT - LC- 2017-0 









































  

Item No.   4F Motion Item 

DATE:  April 7, 2021 (for April 15, 2021 meeting)  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:  Anthony Emmert, Executive Director 

 

SUBJECT:   Sustainable Management Criteria 

SUMMARY: 

The Agency will continue to develop its Sustainable Management Criteria with the assistance of 

its Daniel B. Stephens and Associates consultant team.  The focus of the discussion will be on 

finalizing the Land Subsidence criteria and monitoring and receiving specific input from 

stakeholders on the Streamflow criteria (minimum threshold, management objective) with the 

objective of finalizing the matrix during April 2021. 

RECCOMENDATION: 

The Board will consider stakeholder input regarding the Agency’s Sustainable Management 

Criteria matrix with a focus on finalizing the Land Subsidence criteria and the Streamflow criteria 

and provide direction to Agency staff and consultant team toward development of the draft 

Groundwater Sustainability Plans. 

BACKGROUND 

At the November 4, 2020 special meeting, the Daniel B. Stephens & Associates (DBS&A) team 

provided a presentation on the “Straw Man” Sustainable Management Criteria (SMC), with 

emphasis on the sustainability indicators: 1) chronic lowering of groundwater levels, 2) land 

subsidence, 3) degradation of water quality, and 4) reduction of groundwater storage. The 

Board agreed that the seawater intrusion sustainability indicator is not applicable to the Fillmore 

Basin or Piru Basin. The Board and stakeholders provided feedback to the DBS&A team 

regarding the Undesirable Results and Sustainability Goals and recommended that staff and 

DBS&A revise the groundwater sustainability planning schedule to lengthen the time that the 

Board and stakeholders can develop the SMC in a public process. 

At the November 19, 2020 meeting, the DBS&A team provided a presentation on the “Stress-

Test” model scenarios, illustrating the effects of potential future pumping increases during 

severe droughts and recoveries during subsequent wetter periods.  The DBS&A team also 

presented a summary of the future conditions that it recommends including in the plans.  The 

Board and stakeholders provided feedback to staff and consultants from presentations from the 

November 4 and November 19, 2020 meetings.  DBS&A staff also provided the Board with an 

updated planning schedule that removed the administrative draft milestone and lengthened the 

stakeholder engagement period for development of the SMC. 



Sustainable Management Criteria 
April 7, 2021 
Page 2 
 

During the December 17, 2020 meeting, DBS&A staff provided additional findings from the 

“Stress-Test” model scenarios, including correlation of observed stream flow with observed 

water levels in wells adjacent to rising groundwater areas; and provided a presentation on the 

groundwater dependent ecosystems and impacts from recent drought periods and impacts of 

scouring from large flood events. 

During the January 21, 2021 meeting, DBS&A staff presented observations from the recent 2070 

future model run, using the California Department of Water Resources’(DWR) climate change 

factors.  The observations included impacts of future droughts.  Comparison of modeled water 

levels to bottom of well screen data indicated that no production water wells are projected to 

go dry during future droughts.  Water level-stream flow cross over analysis showed that future 

droughts are projected to lead to reduction or cessation of rising groundwater in the Piru basin-

Fillmore basin boundary zone within a relatively short time period.  Water level-stream flow 

cross over analysis showed that future droughts are projected to lead to reduction of rising 

groundwater in the Fillmore basin-Santa Paula basin boundary zone over several years, but 

flows are unlikely to completely cease. DBS&A staff also presented a conceptual project to 

pump groundwater to augment stream flow in the Piru basin-Fillmore basin boundary area and 

associated riparian zone during multi-year droughts.  

During the February 18, 2021 meeting, DBS&A reviewed the findings of the Land Subsidence 

Technical Memorandum, which is available for review on the Agency’s website.  The DBS&A 

team reviewed previous studies and information regarding subsidence and also used the 

recently completed 2070 groundwater model run that incorporated the DWR climate change 

factors. DBS&A’s conclusion was that the risk of subsidence in the Piru and Fillmore basins is 

low.  The DBS&A team also provided an update on its findings regarding water level-stream flow 

analysis, including a scenario in which shallow wells near the Santa Clara River were not pumped 

during severe drought periods, as a simulation of a potential management action that could be 

taken by the Agency during severe drought periods.  The finding was that pumping of shallow 

wells near the river did have an impact on stream flow in the rising groundwater zones.  

However, DBS&A also found that not pumping those wells during projected future drought 

periods would delay but not prevent water level declines that would likely lead to cessation of 

rising groundwater stream flow at the Piru basin-Fillmore basin boundary zone and likely die-off 

of riparian plants. DBS&A also provided an updated matrix of Sustainable Management Criteria. 

On March 10, 2021, Stillwater Sciences completed the Assessment of Groundwater Dependent 

Ecosystems for the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Plans Technical 

Memorandum (GDE TM), and on March 11, 2021, the Agency posted the document on its 

website and distributed an email notice to stakeholders regarding the posting.   

During the March 18, 2021 Agency Board meeting, Stillwater Sciences presented a summary of 

the GDE TM and DBS&A presented the updated draft SMC matrix.  Stakeholders provided initial 

comments on the GDE TM and comments on the updated draft SMC matrix.  To provide more 

time for stakeholder input, the Board set a special meeting for April 1, 2021, and requested that 

stakeholders submit their written comments by that date and be prepared to provide specific 

recommendations to the Board during the special meeting. 



Sustainable Management Criteria 
April 7, 2021 
Page 3 

During the April 1, 2021 Agency Board meeting, the Board received stakeholder input regarding 

the GDE TM and the updated draft SMC.  Following receiving input from stakeholders during 

the workshop portion of the meeting, the Board discussed the draft SMC matrix and approved 

minimum thresholds and management objectives for the water level, groundwater storage, 

water quality, and seawater intrusion items in the matrix.  To Board noted that the Agency was 

close to finalizing the land subsidence item also but needed a bit more deliberation and input. 

The Board noted that the streamflow item was difficult to address, given the significant impacts 

of multi-year droughts, which the Agency cannot control, as compared to groundwater 

pumping.  The Board acknowledged the potential impacts of drought plus pumping on the 

sensitive species and habitats in the Agency’s service area.  Because of this, the Board 

requested more time to receive input from stakeholders.  The Board requested that 

stakeholders provide specific input on the streamflow minimum threshold and management 

objective, and any recommendations for projects or monitoring that the Agency might consider.  

The Board also directed staff to extend the comment period to April 15, 2021.  The Board 

expressed a desire to thoroughly consider stakeholders’ comments and consider options for the 

streamflow criteria and felt that lengthening the schedule to facilitate thorough discussions 

before the plans were written was of high importance. 

Since the April 1, 2021 Board meeting, the Agency has received written comments on the GDE 

TM from the National Marine Fisheries Service and the County of Ventura Public Works Agency. 

During the April 15, 2021 Board meeting, the Agency’s objective will be to: 1) finalize the 

criteria for the land subsidence item; and 2) further the development of the criteria for the 

streamflow item, considering specific input on a potential minimum threshold, management 

objective, monitoring, and projects .  The Board will have the option of approving the final SMC 

matrix at the meeting or directing the DBS&A team to make additional edits and bring the 

matrix back for approval at a special Board meeting in April 2021. 

For the Agency to maintain its groundwater sustainability planning schedule and produce 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) compliant groundwater sustainability plans 

by December 2021, the Agency must finalize its draft SMCs in April 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None.  

ATTACHMENTS 

Comment letters to the Agency regarding the Land Subsidence TM, the Groundwater Dependent 
Ecosystems TM, or draft Sustainable Management Criteria matrix can be found on the Agency’s website at 
https://www.fpbgsa.org/gsp/section-2-draft/ .  Comment letters received to date include: 
• Memorandum from County of Ventura Public Works Agency on Land Subsidence TM
• Letter from the Fillmore Pumpers Association and Piru Pumpers Association on Subsidence TM
• Letter from California Department of Fish and Wildlife on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems TM
• Memo from County of Ventura Public Works Agency on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems TM
• Letter from Friends of the Santa Clara River on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems TM
• Letter from National Marine Fisheries Service on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems TM
• Letter from The Nature Conservancy on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems TM
• Letter from United Water Conservation District on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems TM

REFERENCES

https://www.fpbgsa.org/gsp/section-2-draft/


Sustainable Management Criteria 
April 7, 2021 
Page 4 

Proposed Motion: 

1st:  Director_____________________ 2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball: Director Long:    Director McFadden Director Meneghin: 
     Director Pace: Director Villasenor: 



  

Item No.   4G Motion 

DATE:  April 8, 2021 (for April 15, 2020 meeting) 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:  Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

SUBJECT:   Special Board Meeting for Sustainable Management Criteria 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will select a date for a Special Board Meeting in April 2021 to adopt the Sustainable 

Management Criteria matrix. 

BACKGROUND 

The Agency Board, stakeholders, the Agency’s consultant team and staff have worked for several 
months to develop a Sustainable Management Criteria (SMC) matrix, which will serve as the basis for 
preparing the Sustainable Management Plans.  The purpose of the Special Board Meeting will be to 
deliberate on and approve a SMC matrix in April 2021.  Approval of the SMC in April is critical to meeting 
the SGMA deadlines. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts. 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
Proposed Motion: 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote:   Director Kimball:  Director Long:             Director McFadden:           

Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:  Director Villasenor: 


	2021-04-15 FPB GSA Board Meeting Agenda Final
	2021-03-18 FPBGSA Board Meeting MINUTES
	2021-04-01 FPBGSA Board Meeting MINUTES
	3B Approval of Warrants
	3C Monthly Financial Report - March 2021
	3C Monthly Financial Report Attachment A - Profit and Loss Statement  March 2021
	3C Monthly Financial Report Attachment B - Balance Sheet March 2021
	4A Resolution 2021-01 Waiver of Late Fees and Interest on Groundwater Charges
	4A Attachment 2021-01 Resolution NO. 2021-01 Amending Bylaws To Authorize ED To Waive Certain Late Penaties And Interest 

	4B California Department of Fish and Wildlife Waiver of Late Fees and Interest Request
	4C Four Oaks Ranch Waiver of Late Fees and Interest Request
	4D City of Fillmore Waiver of Late Fees and Interest Request
	4E Rogers Anderson Malody & Scott LLP Auditor Amendment Number With Attachments
	4F Sustainable Management Criteria Development
	4G Special Board Meeting On Sustainable Management Criteria

